

Old Article	New Article	Rational
<p># Article VII: Membership &amp; Dues</p> <p>#Section 1. Every individual who is a member of this local PTSA is, by virtue of that fact, a member of the National PTA and of the Pennsylvania PTA by which this local PTSA is chartered, and is entitled to all the benefits of such membership. #Section 2. Membership in this local PTSA shall be made available without regard to race, color, creed, or national origin, under such rules and regulations, not in conflict with the provisions of the National PTA bylaws or the Pennsylvania PTA bylaws as may be prescribed in the bylaws of this local PTSA, to any individual who subscribes to the Purposes and basic policies of the National PTA. #Section 3. This local PTSA shall conduct an annual enrollment of members, but may admit individuals to membership at any time. #Section 4. Each member of this local PTSA shall pay such annual dues to said association as may be prescribed by the association. The amount of such dues shall include the portion payable to the Pennsylvania PTA -the "state portion"- and the portion payable to the National PTA -the "national portion." #Section 5. The national portion of each member's dues, to be determined by</p>	<p><b># ARTICLE VII: MEMBERSHIP &amp; DUES</b></p> <p><b>Section 1.</b> Every individual who is a member of this PTA/PTSA is, by virtue of that fact, a member of the National PTA and of the Pennsylvania PTA by which this PTA/PTSA is chartered and is entitled to all the benefits of such membership.</p> <p><b>Section 2.</b> Membership in PTA shall be open, without discrimination, to anyone who believes in and supports the mission and purposes of the National PTA.</p> <p><b>Section 3.</b> This PTA/PTSA must conduct a minimum of one (1) membership campaign annually; however, individuals may join at any time. The membership year shall begin on July 1st and end on June 30th annually. Membership dues with required documentation (using an online membership platform or mailing dues remittance form, list of paid members, and payment of state and national dues) shall be submitted on a monthly basis to the state office. Local units that do not submit any dues to the state PTA office postmarked by September 30 shall be notified that their non-profit status is in jeopardy.</p> <p><b>Section 4.</b> Each member of this PTA/PTSA shall pay such annual dues to said association as may be prescribed by the association. The amount of such dues shall include the portion payable to the Pennsylvania PTA -the "state portion"- and the portion payable to the National PTA -the "national portion."</p> <p><b>Section 5.</b> The national portion of each member's dues shall be two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) per annum as determined by the National PTA.</p> <p><b>Section 6.</b> The state portion of each member's dues shall be two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2.75) per annum as determined by the Pennsylvania PTA.</p>	<p>This article can not be altered. Contained a section that stated the local portion of dues was payable to Council that was removed in accordance with state by law directions.</p>

<p>the National PTA, shall be two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) per annum.  #Section 6. The state portion of each member’s dues, to be determined by the Pennsylvania PTA, shall be two dollars and seventy five cents (\$2.75) per annum.  Section 7. The local portion of each members’ dues shall be determined by this local PTSA at their general membership annual meeting held in May and shall include dues payable to the Mt. Lebanon City Council PTA as provided in Article XIII, Section 2.</p>	<p><b>Section 7.</b> The local portion of each member’s dues shall be determined by this PTA/PTSA at their annual general membership meeting.</p>	
<p>ARTICLE VIII: OFFICERS  Section 1. The officers of this local PTSA shall consist of:  #a. one (1) president; b. three (3) vice presidents; c. two (2) secretary(ies); #d. one (1) treasurer; e. one (1) historian; and f. three (3) board members-at-large.  Section 2. Officers shall be elected in the month of March. #Section 3. The vote shall be conducted by written ballot unless there is only one candidate for office, at which time a voice vote may be held. A majority vote shall be required for election. Section 4. The following provisions shall govern the qualifications and eligibility of individuals to be officers of the Mt. Lebanon High School PTSA:  #a. Each officer shall be a member of this local PTSA.  #b. A person who has served in an office for more than one-half of a full term shall</p>	<p><b>ARTICLE VIII: OFFICERS</b></p> <p><b>Section 1. Officers.</b> The officers of this PTA/PTSA shall consist of:</p> <p># a. one (1) president;</p> <p>b. <b>three (3)</b> vice president (s);</p> <p>c. <u>one (1)</u> secretary (ies); and</p> <p># d. one (1) treasurer.</p> <p>e. <b><u>one (1) Historian</u></b></p> <p><b>Section 2. Eligibility.</b> The following provisions shall govern the qualifications and eligibility of individuals to be officers of this PTA/PTSA:</p> <p>a. Each officer shall be a current member of this PTA/PTSA.</p> <p>b. No person shall serve in more than one elected position in this PTA/PTSA simultaneously.</p> <p>c. <b><u>Each officer of this PTSA shall have been a member of this PTSA or another PTA/PTSA in the Mt. Lebanon</u></b></p>	<p>Removed the second secretary position as they have been merged in practice. Removed the three members at large from officers per state. Other changes in wording as per state template regarding timing of election</p>

be deemed to have served a full term in such office. #c. No person may serve in more than one elected position in this PTSA simultaneously. Local Bylaws Model Revised 7/14 6 d. Each officer of this PTSA shall have been a member of this PTSA or another PTA/PTSA in the Mt. Lebanon School District for one (1) month. e. No officer may be eligible to serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in the same office. f. To be eligible for the presidency a person must have served on the executive board or as a committee chair of this local unit for one (1) year. Section 5. Officers shall assume their official duties following the Council Installation Meeting and shall serve for a term of one (1) year, or until their successors are elected. Section 6. A vacancy occurring in the office of president shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term by the first vice-president. A vacancy in any office other than the president shall be filled by a member elected by the executive board. Section 7. A nominating committee composed of three (3) or five (5) members shall be elected by this local PTSA at a regular meeting at least one (1) month prior to the election of officers as outlined in Article VIII, Section 2. a. The committee shall elect its own chair. b.

**School District for one (1) month prior to being considered for office or placed on a slate.**

**d. To be eligible for the presidency a person must have served on the executive board or as a committee chair of this local unit for one (1) year.**

**Section 3. Term.** Officers shall assume their official duties on July 1<sup>st</sup> and shall serve for a term of one (1) year, or until their successors are elected.

- a. A person who has served in an office for more than one-half of a full term shall be deemed to have served a full term in such office.
- b. No officer may be eligible to serve more than three (3) consecutive terms in the same office.

**Section 4. Vacancy.** A vacancy occurring in the office of president shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term by the **first** vice president. A vacancy in any office other than the president shall be filled by a member elected by the executive board.

**#Section 5. Nominating Committee.**

- a. **Composition.** The nominating committee shall consist of **\_ three (3)** (an odd number no less than three) local unit members. The president shall not serve as a member of this committee.
- b. **Election.** The members of the nominating committee shall be elected by this PTA/PTSA at a regular meeting at least 2 months prior to the election of officers at the annual meeting (as listed in # Article XII: General Membership Meetings, Section 1.b.) The committee shall elect its own chair.
- c. **Duties.** The nominating

<p>The nominating committee shall nominate an eligible person for each office to be filled and report its nominees to the general membership at the February general membership meeting at least thirty (30) days before the annual election meeting. Nominations from the floor may only be made at the February general membership meeting. #c. Only those individuals who have met the qualifications as outlined in Article VIII, Section 4 and who have signified their consent to serve if elected, shall be nominated for, or elected to, such office.</p>	<p>committee shall:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. send out notification of elections;</li> <li>ii. confidentially consider all candidates for elected positions who meet the eligibility requirements set forth by these bylaws and who have provided written consent to serve if elected; may consider additional candidates during its confidential deliberations; and</li> <li>iii. submit only one (1) name for each position to be filled.</li> </ul> <p>d. <b>Report.</b> The nominating committee shall report its nominees to the general membership at least one (1) month prior to the election of officers at the annual meeting (as listed in # Article XII: General Membership Meetings, Section 1.b.)</p> <p><b>#Section 6. Nominations from the floor.</b> Nominations from the floor shall be accepted at the election meeting. Nominees shall be current members of this PTA/PTSA and shall have submitted written consent.</p> <p><b>#Section 7. Elections.</b> Officers shall be elected:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. at the annual general membership meeting;</li> <li>b. by written ballot if there is more than one (1) candidate and a majority vote shall elect; and</li> <li>c. by voice vote when there is only one (1) candidate. Only affirmative votes shall be valid.</li> </ul>	
---	---	--

<p>ARTICLE IX: DUTIES OF OFFICERS</p> <p>Section 1. The president shall</p> <p>a. preside at all meetings of this local PTSA;</p> <p>b. serve as an ex officio member of all committees except the nominating committee and the auditing committee, if authorized to sign checks;</p> <p>c. coordinate the work of the officers and committees of this local PTSA in order that the Purposes may be promoted;</p> <p># d. send contact information (name, address, phone, email if available) for the incoming officers to the state PTA office immediately upon election of officers and no later than June 15 annually;</p> <p>e. perform other duties as may be provided for by these bylaws, prescribed by the parliamentary authority, or directed by the executive board; and</p> <p># f. have a current copy of this unit's bylaws available for membership review.</p> <p>Section 2. The vice-president(s) shall act as aide(s) to the president; and in the designated order of first vice-president, second vice-president and third vice-president, perform the duties of the president in the president's absence or inability to serve.</p>	<p><b>ARTICLE IX: DUTIES OF OFFICERS</b></p> <p><b># Section 1.</b> All officers shall perform the duties as provided in these bylaws, and as may be prescribed by the association, the parliamentary authority and as directed by the president or the executive board of this PTA/PTSA</p> <p><b>Section 2.</b> The president shall:</p> <p># a. preside at all general membership and executive board meetings of this PTA/PTSA;</p> <p># b. confirm that a quorum is present (refer to <i>Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised</i>, current edition);</p> <p># c. serve as an ex-officio member of all committees with the exception of nominating, election, and audit committees;</p> <p># d. coordinate the work of the officers and committees of this PTA/PTSA in order that the purposes may be promoted;</p> <p># e. communicate with state PTA to comply with all standards of affiliation and maintain 'good standing' status as outlined in these bylaws;</p> <p># f. file the Annual Local Unit Registration Form with the state PTA office immediately upon election of officers and no later than June 15 annually;</p> <p># g. serve as the official representative of this PTA/PTSA and be authorized to sign contracts;</p> <p># h. retain all official records of this</p>	<p>Removed non-required officer duties from by-laws to standing rules</p> <p>Removed duties of corresponding secretary and at large board members</p>
--	--	---

<p>Local Bylaws Model Revised 7/14 7</p> <p>a. The first vice-president shall</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. have primary responsibility for program planning and for the calendar pages;</li> <li>2. coordinate the work of the committee chairmen of school education, publicity, and parent education;</li> <li>3. serve as an official delegate to the Mt. Lebanon City Council PTA.</li> </ol> <p>b. The second vice-president shall</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. implement the policies of the association in financial and social areas;</li> <li>2. advise and assist the chairmen of fundraising activities, budget, hospitality, social committees, and the treasurer; and</li> <li>3. be a member of the budget committee.</li> </ol> <p>c. The third vice-president shall</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. coordinate volunteer services, assisting where volunteers are needed for PTA functions and student activity office events.</li> </ol> <p>Section 3. The recording secretary shall</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li># a. record the minutes of all meetings of the Mt. Lebanon High School PTSA;</li> <li>b. maintain a current copy of the bylaws and membership list.</li> <li>#c. present a written copy of the previous meetings records at each meeting.</li> <li>#d. have at each meeting,</li> </ol>	<p>PTA/PTSA and have a current copy of this unit's bylaws available for membership review; and</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li># i. appoint a parliamentarian as needed.</li> </ol> <p><b><u>j. other duties s listed in the standing rules</u></b></p> <p><b>Section 3.</b> The vice-president(s) shall<sup>1</sup></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li># a. serve as aide(s) to the president;</li> <li># b. in their designated order, <b><u>of first vice-president, second vice-president and third vice-president,</u></b> perform the duties of the president in the president's absence or inability to serve.</li> </ol> <p><b><u>c. other duties as listed in the standing rules</u></b></p> <p><b>Section 4.</b> The secretary shall<sup>2</sup></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li># a. record the minutes of all general membership and executive board meetings of this PTA/PTSA;</li> <li># b. maintain a current copy of the bylaws and membership list;</li> <li># c. at each meeting, present a written copy of the minutes from the previous meeting, for corrections/amendments and approval;</li> <li># d. maintain at each meeting, written records for at least the previous twelve (12) meetings, for possible review by members; and</li> </ol>	
--	--	--

<p>written records available for review by members, for at least the previous twelve (12) meetings.</p> <p>Section 4. The corresponding secretary shall</p> <p>a. conduct the delegated correspondence as assigned;</p> <p>b. send a list of the officers and committee chairs with their addresses and telephone numbers to the Mt. Lebanon City Council PTA.</p> <p>Section 5. The treasurer shall</p> <p># a. have custody of and maintain a full account of the funds of this local PTSA;</p> <p>b. submit dues as directed in Article VII Membership &amp; Dues Section 10 of these bylaws;</p> <p>c. make disbursements as authorized by the executive board, or this local PTSA in accordance with the budget adopted by this local PTSA;</p> <p># d. have checks or vouchers signed by two people (the treasurer and one other person);</p> <p># e. provide a written financial statement to the executive board at each meeting;</p> <p># f. present an annual report of the financial condition of this association to the Local Bylaws Model Revised 7/14 8 membership;</p> <p># g. have the accounts examined annually by an auditor or an auditing committee of not fewer than three members, who</p>	<p># e. be responsible for all correspondence of the association, as needed and as directed by the president</p> <p># f. <b><u>other duties as listed in the standing rules</u></b></p> <p><b>Section 5.</b> The treasurer shall:</p> <p># a. hold and maintain a full account of all the funds of this PTA/PTSA;</p> <p># b. keep a full and accurate account of all income and expenditures including bank statements, deposit receipts, budgets, invoices, and paid receipts in accordance with the records retention policy as provided by the Pennsylvania PTA;</p> <p># c. remit monthly, five dollars (\$5.00 = national + state portions of dues) for each member of the PTA/PTSA, as listed on the Dues Remittance Form, to the state PTA office (see Article VII: Membership &amp; Dues, Section 9. &amp; #Article IV: Relationship with National PTA and Pennsylvania PTA , Section 1.);</p> <p># d. record national and state portions of the membership dues separate from record of general funds of this PTA/PTSA;</p> <p># e. make disbursements in accordance with the budget adopted by the general membership this PTA/PTSA;</p> <p># f. present a written and verbal financial statement of each financial account which shall include the balance from the</p>	
--	---	--

<p>are not authorized to sign checks. If satisfied that the treasurer's annual report is correct, they shall sign a statement to that fact at the end of the report.</p> <p>The auditing committee shall be elected by the executive board at least one month before the meeting at which new officers assume duties;</p> <p>#h. upon resignation of an officer during a term, have the accounts examined by an auditor or an auditing committee following the fiscal year end auditing procedures;</p> <p>#i. report the findings of the annual audit in writing to the executive board;</p> <p>#j. all audit reports shall be presented to the general membership for adoption at the first general membership meeting held after the completion of the report;</p> <p>#k. such books of account and records shall be open to inspection, at all reasonable times, by an officer of this PTSA, an authorized representative of the Pennsylvania PTA or, where directed by the committee on state and national relationships, by a duly authorized representative of the National PTA; and</p> <p>#l. if unit is incorporated, notify the Pennsylvania Department of State, Bureau of Incorporation,</p>	<p>previous meeting, list of deposits and expenditures, and current balance, along with a combined balance of all accounts, at all executive board and general membership meetings;</p> <p># g. present a preliminary annual financial report which shall include the approved budget figures and the actual current figures, at the annual general membership meeting of this PTA/PTSA;</p> <p># h. present all audit reports to the general membership for adoption at the first general membership meeting held after their completion;</p> <p># i. such books of account and records shall be open to inspection, at all reasonable times, by an officer of this PTA/PTSA, an authorized representative of the Pennsylvania PTA or, where directed by the committee on state and national relationships;</p> <p># j. if unit is incorporated, notify the Pennsylvania Department of State, Bureau of Incorporation, when there is a change of officers;</p> <p># k. prepare or cause to be prepared, the appropriate IRS 990 form by the 15<sup>th</sup> day of the 5th month after the end of the fiscal year of this PTA/PTSA;</p> <p># l. forward to the state PTA office annually:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. a copy of the Form 990N, 990, or 990EZ as required per IRS regulations upon</li> </ul>	
---	---	--



<p>when there is a change of officers.</p> <p>m. forward to the state PTA office each year upon completion, a copy of the Form 990N, 990, or 990EZ as required per IRS regulations; and</p> <p>n. forward a signed copy of all audit reports to the state office immediately following their adoption by the general membership.</p> <p>Section 6. The historian shall</p> <p>a. keep a record of activities and achievements of the association and make such information available to local, council, district or state leaders as requested;</p> <p>b. keep a list of officers and standing committee chairs;</p> <p>c. have a current copy of the bylaws, all bylaws amendments, the standing rules, and all incorporation papers.</p> <p>d. collect all year-end committee and officer reports for the association; and</p> <p>e. keep a record of all awards given by this PTSA and send a list of such awards to Mt. Lebanon City Council PTA historian each year.</p> <p>Section 7. The board members-at-large shall</p> <p>a. attend all PTSA general membership meetings and Executive Board meetings and provide input.</p> <p>b. Act as liaison between general membership and</p>	<p>completion; and</p> <p>ii. a signed copy of all audit reports to the state office immediately following adoption by the general membership.</p> <p># m. compile and submit all financial documents necessary to complete an audit to the elected audit committee or approved auditor as directed by the executive board.</p> <p><b><u>n. other duties as listed in the standing rules</u></b></p> <p><b><u>Section 6. The historian shall:</u></b></p> <p>a. be responsible for collection of all officer and committee chair reports after completion of each event</p> <p>b. <b><u>perform other duties as listed in the standing rules</u></b></p>	
--	--	--

<p>the Executive Board.  # Section 8. All officers shall perform other duties as may be provided for in these bylaws, prescribed by the parliamentary authority, or directed by the president, or the executive board.</p>		
<p>ARTICLE X: EXECUTIVE BOARD  Section 1. The business of the Mt. Lebanon High School PTSA shall be managed by the executive board in the intervals between local unit PTSA general membership meetings.  #Section 2. Each executive board member shall be a member of this local PTSA.  Section 3. The members of the executive board shall be elected officers and the principal of the school.  Section 4. Duties of the executive board shall be to  a. transact business as may be referred to it by the membership of this local PTSA;  b. create special committees as needed and appoint chairmen for each special committee;  c. approve plans of work of the committees;  d. elect an auditor or an auditing committee to audit the treasurer’s accounts;  #e. prepare and submit an annual budget to this local PTSA general membership for adoption;  f. approve payment of routine bills within the limits of the approved budget; and</p>	<p><b>ARTICLE X: EXECUTIVE BOARD</b></p> <p><b>Section 1.</b> The business of this PTA/PTSA shall be managed by the executive board between general membership meetings.</p> <p><b>#Section 2.</b> Each executive board member shall be a member of this PTA/PTSA.</p> <p><b>Section 3.</b> The members of the executive board shall be:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li># a. elected officers.,</li> <li>b. (list on the line below others as applicable to the council PTA, i.e. president or alternate from each member local PTA/PTSA; standing committee chairs; etc.) <b>_____the principal of this school who is appointed_____</b></li> <li>c. <b>Three (3) at large members who are elected</b></li> </ul> <p><b>Section 4.</b> Duties of the executive board shall be to:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. a. transact business as may be referred to it by the membership of this PTA/PTSA;</li> <li>b. b. create standing and special committees and appoint</li> </ul>	<p>Changed the amount of members to call a special meeting from three to a majority, specified the principal is appointed and added the three at large members per recommendation of state PTA.</p>

<p>g. appoint all standing committee chairs.</p> <p>#Section 5. If any member of the executive board shall at any time cease to meet the qualifications or fulfill the duties of the position as listed in the bylaws, that person shall be removed from the position by a motion adopted first by the Executive Board and then by the General Membership. The vote shall be by a majority.</p> <p>Section 6. Regular meetings of the executive board shall be determined by the President.</p> <p>Section 7. Special meetings of the executive board may be called by the president or when requested by three (3) members upon three (3) days' written notice to each member of the board.</p> <p>Section 8. At all meetings of the executive board, a majority of the members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.</p> <p>Section 9. Upon the expiration of the term of office or when individuals cease to hold the position, all records, books, and other materials pertaining to the position shall be turned over to the president and all funds pertaining to the position shall be returned to the treasurer within ten (10) days.</p>	<p>chairmen/coordinator for all committee;</p> <p>c. c. approve plans of work of the committees;</p> <p>d. d. present a report of all action taken by the Executive board at every general membership meeting of this PTA/PTSA;</p> <p>e. e. elect an auditor or an auditing committee to audit the treasurer's accounts;</p> <p>f. f. prepare an annual budget for the upcoming fiscal year, to submitted to the members for adoption at the annual general membership meeting;</p> <p>g. g. approve payment of routine bills within the limits of the approved budget;</p> <p>h. h. elect delegates to the state convention, and</p> <p>i. i. act in emergencies between general membership meetings and have all emergency actions ratified at the next general membership meeting.</p> <p>#Section 5. If any member of the executive board shall at any time cease to meet the qualifications or fulfill the duties of the position as listed in the bylaws, that person shall be removed from the position by a motion adopted first by the executive board and then by the general membership. The vote shall be by a majority.</p> <p><b>Section 6. Regular meetings of the</b></p>	
---	--	--

	<p><b><u>executive board shall be determined by the President.</u></b></p> <p><b>Section 7.</b> Special meetings of the executive board may be called by the president or when requested by a <b><u>majority</u></b> of its members upon <b><u>3 (three)</u></b> (number, not less than two) days' advance written notice to each member of the board.</p> <p><b>Section 8.</b> At all meetings of the executive board, a majority of the members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.</p> <p><b>Section 9.</b> Upon the expiration of the term of office or when individuals cease to hold the position on the board, they shall automatically be relieved of all duties and responsibilities. All records, books, and other materials pertaining to the position shall be turned over to the president and all funds pertaining to the position shall be returned to the treasurer within fourteen (14) days.</p>	
<p>ARTICLE XI: COMMITTEES</p> <p>Section 1. Only members of this local PTSA shall be eligible to serve as chairmen.</p> <p>Section 2. The standing committees of this local PTSA shall be listed in the standing rules.</p> <p>Section 3. The term of office of each committee chair shall be one (1) year or until the selection of a successor.</p> <p>Section 4. Each committee chair shall present a plan of work to the executive board for approval. No committee work shall be undertaken without the consent of the executive</p>	<p><b>ARTICLE XI: COMMITTEES</b></p> <p><b>Section 1. Committees.</b> The executive board shall create such standing and special committees as deemed necessary to promote the purposes and appoint the chairman/coordinator for all committees.</p> <p><b>Section 2. Standing Committees.</b> The standing committees of this PTA/PTSA shall be: (List the names of the standing committees, i.e. membership, fundraising, programs, bylaws, advocacy, legislative, etc.) <b><u>Arts in Education, By Laws and Parliamentarian, Class Breakfasts, Corporate Rewards, College Greeter, Prom, Staff Appreciation, Awards</u></b>_____.</p>	<p>Adopted suggested template wording. Added consecutive term limit of three years. Listed out standing committees.</p>

<p>board.</p>	<p><b>Section 3. Chairman/Coordinator Eligibility.</b> Only members of this PTA/PTSA shall be eligible to serve as a committee chairman/coordinator.</p> <p><b>Section 4. Chairman /Coordinator Term.</b></p> <p>a. The term of office of each committee chairman/coordinator shall be one (1) year or until a successor is appointed.</p> <p>b. <u>A chairman/coordinator shall not be eligible to serve more than three (3) consecutive terms as the chairman/coordinator of the same committee.</u></p> <p><b>Section 5. Chairman/Coordinator Duties.</b> <u>Each committee chairman/coordinator shall:</u></p> <p>a. <u>present a plan of work to the executive board for approval;</u></p> <p>b. <u>coordinate all work of the committee;</u></p> <p>c. <u>perform other duties as assigned by the president; and</u></p> <p>d. <u>upon the expiration of the term of office or when individuals cease to hold the position, , they shall automatically be relieved of all duties and responsibilities. All records, books, and other materials pertaining to the position shall be turned over to the president and all funds pertaining to the position shall be returned to the treasurer within fourteen (14) days.</u></p>	
<p># ARTICLE XII: GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS Section 1. At least three (3) general membership</p>	<p><b># ARTICLE XII: GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS</b></p>	<p>In accordance with the change to have the officer election and budget presentation at the same</p>

<p>meetings of this association shall be held during the school year. Dates of meetings shall be determined by the executive board and announced at the first general membership meeting of the year. Three (3) days' notice shall be given to the membership of a change of date.</p> <p>Section 2. Special meetings of this local PTSA may be called by the president or by the majority of the executive board with three (3) days' notice having been given.</p> <p>Section 3. The annual meeting shall be held in May, at which time the budget for the upcoming year shall be presented to the membership for a vote.</p> <p>Section 4. A quorum of seven (7) members is required for the transaction of business in any meeting of this local PTSA.</p>	<p><b>Section 1. Regular Meetings.</b> This association shall hold a minimum of three (3) general membership meetings during the membership year. A general membership meeting may be held electronically, in the event of an emergency.</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. Dates of general membership meetings shall be determined by the executive board and announced at the first general membership meeting of the year, as well as through all communication channels used by this PTA/PTSA. Five (5) days' advance notice shall be given to the membership of a change of date.</li> <li>b. The annual meeting shall be held in <u>April</u> (insert April, May or June ONLY) at which time the business shall include the election of officers by the members, determination of next year's local portion of the dues, preliminary annual fiscal report, and presentation of next year's budget for approval by the membership.</li> </ul> <p><b>Section 2. Special Meetings.</b> A special meeting of this PTA/PTSA, if needed, shall be called by the president or by the majority of the executive board with three (3) days' advance notice which shall include the date, time, place and purpose for the meeting. A general membership meeting may be held electronically, in the event of an emergency. No other business shall be discussed or conducted.</p> <p><b>SECTION 3. QUORUM. THE QUORUM FOR THE TRANSACTION OF BUSINESS IN ANY GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING OF THIS PTA/PTSA SHALL BE <u>7 (SEVEN)</u> (NUMBER) MEMBERS.</b></p>	<p>meeting, the annual meeting was changed to April to allow for a budget approval for next fiscal year prior to the close of the current fiscal year.</p>
--	---	--

<p><b>ARTICLE XIII: COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP</b></p> <p>The following sections must correspond to the council PTA bylaws, and are provided as a guideline to local PTAs/PTSAs.</p> <p>Section 1. This local PTSA shall be represented in meetings of the Mt. Lebanon City council PTA by two delegates. Delegates shall be the president and first vice president.</p> <p>a. All representatives to the Mt. Lebanon City council PTA must be members of this local PTSA.</p> <p>#b. Current membership must be verified for voting privileges.</p> <p>Section 2. This local PTSA shall pay annual dues of one dollar and forty-five cents (\$1.45) per member, postmarked on or by December 1, to the Mt. Lebanon City council PTA, as provided in the council bylaws, to be applied as follows:</p> <p>a. forty-five cents (\$0.45) per member will be used for operating expenses; and</p> <p>b. one dollar (\$1.00) per member will be used for a special fund maintained for the Georgia Pogue Scholarship Fund.</p>	<p><b>ARTICLE XIII: COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP</b></p> <p><i>This article applies only to local units that are a part of a council PTA. If not applicable, write N/A alongside the title and draw an "X" through this section or CAREFULLY delete the content of this Article XIII (EXCEPT the title).</i></p> <p>The following sections must correspond to the council PTA bylaws and are provided as a guideline to local PTAs/PTSAs.</p> <p><b>Section 1.</b> This PTA/PTSA shall be represented in meetings of the <u>Mt. Lebanon City</u> council PTA by <u>two delegates. Delegates shall be</u> the president, or appointed alternate, and by <u>the first vice-president</u> or alternate(s). The number of delegates shall correspond with the number as stated in the council PTA bylaws.</p> <p># a. All representatives to the council PTA must be members of this PTA/PTSA.</p> <p>b. Delegates and their alternates shall be seated by <u>selection</u> (Choose either: election or selection) by the <u>Executive Board</u> (choose one: Executive Board or general membership) by September 15<sup>th</sup> annually.</p> <p>c. Delegates to the council PTA shall serve for a term of one (1) year.</p> <p><b>Section 2.</b> This local PTSA shall pay annual dues of one dollar and forty-five cents (\$1.45) per member, postmarked on or by October 15<sup>th</sup>, to the Mt. Lebanon City council PTA, as provided in the council bylaws, to be applied as follows:</p> <p>a. forty-five cents (\$0.45) per member will be used for operating expenses; and</p> <p>b. one dollar (\$1.00) per member will be used for a special fund maintained for the Georgia Pogue Scholarship Fund.</p>	<p>Specified how delegates are chosen by selection and not election.</p> <p>Section 2 changed date to October 15</p>
--	--	--

--	--	--